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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

- Iy 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4488 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4488
Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-271-4902 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Associate Commissioner
May 28, 2013
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community-Based Care Services,
Bureau of Developmental Services, Special Medical Services Section, to enter into an agreement not to exceed
$250,794.00 with Child and Family Services, 464 Chestnut Street, P. O. Box 448, Manchester, NH 03105
(Vendor Code 177166-B002), to provide family support services for children and adolescents with chronic health
conditions and their families, effective July 1, 2013 or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later,
through June 30, 2015.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2014 and State Fiscal Year 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust the amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of
the contract without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-7858 DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVSC, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT DD

Class/Account Description SFY 2014 Amount | SFY 2015 Amount TOTAL
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services $125,397.00 $125,397.00 $250,794.00

EXPLANATION / 00 O/ 0 _—i::a/cQ’lf»&k

This Request is for the provision of family support services for children with chronic illnesses and their
families who reside in the Partners In Health—Regions 1-Berlin, 2-Claremont, 12-Lebanon and 13-Littleton (a
list of cities and town that make up the region is attached). There are a total of twelve (12) PIH Regions that
together provide service statewide. Each Region maintains family councils made up of parents who have
children with chronic illnesses. Each site maintains family councils made up of parents who have children with
chronic illnesses. These councils are involved with a variety of projects—parent education, recreational and
social activities, support groups and respite. Together, they link families, communities and the State, providing a
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collective voice for families who know the issues of raising children with chronic health conditions. In addition,
each Partners In Health site provides a family support coordinator who collaborates with families to (a) find
appropriate resources, (b) connect to support groups, (c) provide flexible funding for such things as emergency
food, medicine, transportation, (d) enhance communication with schools and attend IEP meetings, (¢) make
special arrangements during hospitalizations and discharge.

It is estimated that between 160-230 children and their families will be served during each year of this
contract.

A Request for Proposals which included detailed performance measures was published on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website on January 16, 2013. A total of eleven (11) letters of intent
from Partners In Health regional agencies were received. A written application was received from this bidder on
February 22, 2013. No other bidders responded for this region.

After a thorough evaluation of the proposal submitted, Child and Family Services was selected to provide
services to children and families residing in Regions 1, 2, 12 and 13. A Bid Summary is attached.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to authorize this request between 160-230
children and their families will not have access to support for community integration, financial assistant, or case
management related to their child’s chronic health condition.

This agreement contains a provision to extend this award for up to two additional years contingent upon
satisfactory service, sufficient funding and the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

The total agreement price for SFY 2014 is not to exceed $125,397.00 and for SFY 2015 is also not to
exceed $125,397.00.

Area served: Partners In Health Regions 1, 2, 12 and 13. A list of cities and towns to be served is attached.
Source of funds: 100% Federal funds from the Social Services Block Grant.

In the event that Federal funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,/g/&m

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commaissioner

oot A

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission 1s to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FY 2014-15

Family Support Services for Children and Adolescents with Chronic Health Conditions

REGIONS 1,2, 12 and 13
Child & Family Services
NEW HAMPSHIRE PARTNERS IN HEALTH REGIONAL SITES

REGION 1 - BERLIN
Child & Family Services
25 Main Street
Lancaster, NH 03584

REGIONS 2 and 12-UPPER VALLEY

Child & Family Services
3 Atwood Avenue
Lebanon, NH 03784

REGION 3 - LACONIA
Central NH VNA & Hospice
780 North Main Street
Laconia, NH 03246

REGION 4 - CONCORD
Community Bridges

2 Whitney Road
Concord, NH 03301

REGION 4 - KEENE

Monadnock Developmental Services
121 Railroad Avenue

Keene, NH 03431

REGION 6 - NASHUA
Gateways Community Services
144 Canal Street

Nashua, NH 03064

REGION 7 - MANCHESTER

VNA of Manchester and Southern NH
1040 Holt Avenue, Suite 1400
Manchester, NH 03109

REGION 8 - PORTSMOUTH
Families First of the Greater Seacoast
100 Campus Drive, Suite 12
Portsmouth, NH 03801

REGION 9 - DOVER
Community Partners

113 Crosby Road, Suite 1
Dover, NH 03820

REGION 10 - DERRY
Gateways Community Services
144 Canal Street

Nashua, NH 03064

REGION 11 - CONWAY

White Mountain Community Health Services
P O Box 2800

Conway, NH 03818

REGION 13 - LITTLETON
Child and Family Services
28 Lafayette Avenue
Littleton, NH 03561




FY 2014-15
Family Support Services for Children and Adolescents with Chronic Health Conditions

REGION 1-BERLIN / REGION 2-CLAREMONT / REGION 12-LEBANON/
REGION 13 LITTLETON
Child & Family Services

TOWNS AND CITIES SERVED

BERLIN site

Berlin Carroll Clarksville Colebrook
Columbia Dalton Dixville Dummer
Erroll Gorham Jefferson Lancaster
Milan Northumberland Pittsburgh Randolph
Shelburne Stark Stewartstown Stratford
Wentworth Whitefield

CLAREMONT site

Acworth Charlestown Claremont Cornish
Croydon Goshen Grantham Langdon
Lempster Newport Plainfield Springfield
Sunapee Unity Washington

LEBANON site

Canaan Dorchester Enfield Grafton
Hanover Lebanon Lyme Orange
Orford

LITTLETON site

Bath Benton Bethlehem Easton
Franconia Haverhill Landaff Lincoln
Lisbon Littleton Livermore Lyman
Monroe Piermont Sugar Hill Warren
Waterville Woodstock Woodsville



SCORING SUMMARY SHEET
REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS

FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENTS

WITH CHRONIC HEALTH CONDITIONS

Applicant: *Child and Family Services
Regions 1, 2, 12 and 13, Partners In Health Program

Total Available

1. Agency Capacity (40 points)

2. Program Structure/Plan of Operation (45 points)

3. Budget and Justification (10 points)

4. Format ( S points)
TOTAL (100 points)

Reviewers:

Average Score
40
39

9

ln

Kathy Cahill, RN, MS, Public Health Program Manager, Clinical Coordinator, Special Medical

Services Section

Linda Graham, Masters of Education in Early Childhood Education, Administrator II, Family

Centered- Early Supports and Services, Bureau of Developmental Services

Sharon Kaiser, RN, BS, Early Childhood Systems Program Specialist, Special Medical Services

Section

*This was the only proposal received, for Family Support Services for Children and Adolescents with

Chronic Health Conditions, for these service areas.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Family Support Serv., Children & Adolescents with Chronic Health Conditions, Berlin, Lebanon, Littleton Sites
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Special Medical Services Section Concord, NH
Bureau of Developmental Services 03301-3857
Division of Community Based Care Services
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
464 Chestnut Street
Child and Family Services P O Box 448
Manchester, NH 03105
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 010-093-7858-102-0731
603-524-8444 June 30, 2015 $250,794.00
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner 603-271-8181
1.11 Contractor Slgnat Q 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
MZS Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of AJ @~ ﬂam ski-e, County of N« Ifs bececc S I
On "{— S , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or

satlsfactorlly proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the

1.13.1 Signature ofgNstessdtdsins

OFFICIAL SEAL
JODI A GORTON
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

[Seal] STATE OF NEW HAMP S~
AANL t‘l\hALA [ =l V4 w114

capacity indicated in block 1. 12

1.13.2 Name and Tltle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

_7 /MW 7?4 /é% M Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

TR [
By pane Po plerrick, Atorrrs o F U200

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination'of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. -

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. .

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: /
Date:



8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of; this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.
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11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or .
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer

Contractor Initials: M7 /{/(

Date:




identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Date: %/

Contractor Initials: W




WITHOUT SEAL

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Michael R. Ostrowski ,of  Child and Family Services of NH
do hereby certify that:

1. Tam the duly elected _ Assistant Secretary

of  Child and Family Services of NH

>

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of the corporation, duly held on March 26, 2013;

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New

Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human Services, Division of

Community Based Care Services.

RESOLVED: That the Chair, Board of Trustees

is hereby authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contract with the
State and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,

desirable, or appropriate. Marilyn Mahoney is the duly elected _ Chair

Board of Trustees of the corporation.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of _ April 3, 2013.

4. Marilyn Mahoney is the elected Chair, Board of Trustees of the Corporation.

—

Michael R. Ostrowski, Assistant Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF _ HILLSBOROUGH

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 3™ day of April ,2013 by
Michael R. Ostrowski

. s < 3 {7/
Notary Diiblic/Justice-of the Peace §\ 'B:EA4<\’////”/
My Cofymission Expires: S *Amoﬁ@;%
F 7 commssoy - =
= oms I =
S ig amETn 4 =
Z ﬁp m & §
B85 S O S
ARy pUSS
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

DATE: Commencing upon date of Governor and Council approval or July 1, 2013,
whichever is later, thrugh June 30, 2015.

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1,2013 to June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR:

NAME: Child and Family Services

ADDRESS: 464 Chestnut Street

P O Box 448

Manchester, NH 03105

TELEPHONE: 603-518-4000

FAX: 603-352-1637

EMAIL: cobbj@cfsnh.org

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Michael R. Ostrowski, President/CEQ

The Family Support Services/Partners in Health Program contracted through the Special Medical Services
Section will focus on services that maintain and improve the system of comprehensive family support
services and community/regional resources to address the needs of children with chronic health
conditions (birth to 21 years of age) and their families.

1. General Provisions:

1 The Contractor shall take primary responsibility for coordinating the day-to-day
management of the regional Partners in Health site for Regions 1, 2, 12 and 13 as defined in
He-M523.

2 Management consists of assessment, planning, implementation, and on-going evaluation of
services delivered.

3 The Contractor shall consult with the Special Medical Services Section regarding
planning, resource location, service design, and coordination of community-based services.

LS

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Ipitials:
Standard Exhibit A — Scope of Services 4,
January 2009 Date: 5 /3
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4 Program activities include attendance at Lead Agency Supervisor Meetings quarterly and
Family Support Coordinator Meetings monthly, as well as meetings held at other locations;

and additional activities as assigned by the Administrator or designee of the Special
Medical Services Section.

5 In the event of a vacancy in any of the Family Support Coordinator positions, the
Contractor shall recruit for the position(s). The Special Medical Services Section shall
maintain final approval in the selection process.

5.1 SMS should be notified in writing within one (1) month of hire of when a new
Family Support Coordinator is hired to work in the program. A resume of the
employee shall accompany this notification.

5.2 Resumes of all staff shall be submitted to SMS with the agency’s application for
funding.

5.3 The Contractor shall make a request in writing to the Special Medical Services
Section before hiring new program personnel that do not meet the required staff
qualifications. A waiver may be granted based on the need of the program, the
individual’s experience and/or additional training.

6 In addition, the Special Medical Services Section retains the right to reorganize services to
ensure continuity of service delivery.

7 The Contractor provides documentation of program accomplishments and clinical
statistics through the reporting mechanism established by the Special Medical Services
Section’s administrative staff. He/She also completes an annual report of activities and
identified needs in an approved format and timeframe. Additional information may be
requested at any time during the contract period, which the Contractor shall be required to
submit.

2. Required activities of the Family Support Services/Partners in Health Program shall include. but
not be limited to. the following:

2.1. Support the established Partners in Health Program site designed to enhance community
support for families of children and adolescents with chronic health conditions.

2.2. Implement internal policies, procedures, standards and practices in collaboration with the
Family Council, to maintain flexible, consistent, quality, effective and appropriate services in
compliance with New Hampshire Law and Administrative Rules.

2.3. Advocate for the rights and needs of children who have chronic health conditions and their
families.

2.4. Identify and utilize appropriate community resources to meet the needs of children and their
families; and functions as a liaison among agency, family and team.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: /I'( ‘ ‘
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2.5. Provide consultation to children with chronic health conditions, their families, other team
members, and other community providers regarding management of the multiple challenges
facing families of children with chronic health conditions. Incorporate and emphasis on
promotion of coordinated transitions, autonomy, need for referral, and continuity of service.

2.6. Maintain client record confidentiality information and assure that services are provided in
accordance with policies and procedures of the Special Medical Services Section.

2.7. Provide effective and evidence based family support practices.

* Promote and support the values and philosophy of PIH; ensure the provision of flexible
services using the elements of Family Centered Care with an approach that builds on
strengths and promotes action planning, including Motivational Interviewing, Coaching,
Person-Centered Planning, SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, Timely)
goals or other approved evidenced-based approaches for behavioral change;

* Integrate family support services with other agency services in region;

* Incorporate the family support program within the agency's administrative structure;

= Support a full time (35 hours or more per week) Family Support Coordinator;

» Collaborate with the Family Council in assessing, designing, and implementing family-
centered services;

* Promote community/regional participation in designing services and providing resources
for families and children; and,

» Collaborate and promote networking and community building with other PIH sites, other
systems of family support, and other community agencies in the region.

2.8. Provide educational opportunities to families, and training and support activities to Family
Councils.

2.9. Continue to identify ways to expand financial supports of unmet needs of families of children
with chronic health conditions, and related resource development.

2.10. Respond to emerging issues identified by state agencies, communities, Family Councils, and
families in collaboration with the State Council, Special Medical Services, and the Stakeholder

group.

2.11. Participates in the planning, development and evaluation of program goals and objectives in
conjunction with the Special Medical Services Section’s administrative staff.

2.12. Participates with the Special Medical Services Section in developing, implementing and
revising quality assurance activities and standards of care.

2.13. Documents family support activities monthly and annually through timely completion and
submission of encounter and activity data utilizing the format approved by the Special Medical
Services Section.

2.14. Completion of year-end summary of fiscal activities.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractorl/n'lials: /} (
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT B

METHODS AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

In consideration for the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under the Agreement, the
State agrees to fund the Contractor to provide the services specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. This
Agreement shall not exceed $ 250,794.00 _ during the program period as specified in Blocks 3.1 and 3.2
of the General Provisions of this Agreement. This contract is funded with Federal Funds made available
from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.667, Social Services Block Grant, in the
amount of $7,424,379.00.

Payments to the Contractor will be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

2.1 The Contractor agrees to submit to the Special Medical Services Section by October 30, January
30, April 30 and June 30, reports of all expenditures.

2.2 The Contractor shall submit expenditure reports for reimbursement for services rendered in
accordance with the approved Budget. Such expenditure reports shall be submitted to the Special
Medical Services Section on a monthly basis. These reports shall be in a form satisfactory to the
State and shall be submitted no later than twenty (20) working days after the close of the month.

2.3 The Contractor shall have the authority to adjust line items within the Budget by plus or minus
15% without prior approval by the Special Medical Services Section. Adjustments exceeding
15% shall require the written prior approval of the Special Medical Services Section. In no event
shall total expenditures exceed the total budgeted amount. The Contractor shall make no
adjustments as to incur additional expenses in subsequent years.

2.3 The total payments shall be based on the price limitation in Paragraph 1.8 of the General
Provisions of this Agreement and upon the approved Budget.

2.4 The Contractor agrees to submit to the Special Medical Services Section such other financial and
program information as may be reasonably required. Failure to submit such other information
shall consistitute an Event of Default.

2.5 The Contractor also agrees that payment for the final period of each program year, which is June
30, 2014 and June 30, 2015, shall not be made until the Contractor completes all activities and
delivers all products as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement
may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State law, rule or regulation
applicable to the services provided or, if in the determination of the Administrator, Special Medical
Services Section, the said services have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

The Contractor shall bill the NH Medicaid Program on behalf of Medicaid-eligible children and
adolescents with chronic health conditions at a maximum of $121,329.00 for each fiscal year covered
under this contract for the Berlin and Lebanon sites.

Contractor Injtials: M
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of

costs;
NH DHHS Contractor Jpitial :/(’( W
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations" and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.
nifials: /L{ 770\
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12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’'s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
o Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function
e Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and
how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate

itials: W

NH DHHS Contractor |
Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions / 3

January 2013 Date:
Page 3 of 4 /




Page 12 of 30

e Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

e Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

e DHHS shall review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective
action.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

T
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STANDARD EXHIBIT C-I

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by, or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer of employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress, in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

2; If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress, in connection with
this Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete
and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its
instructions.

3. Debarment, Suspension or Other Responsibility Matters

If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply
with the provisions of Section 319 of the Public Law 101-121, Limitation on use of appropriated funds
to influence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions; with the provisions of Executive
Order 12549 and 45 CFR Subpart A, B, C, D and E, Section 76, regarding Debarment, Suspension
and Other Responsibility Matters, and shall complete and submit to the State the appropriate
certificates of compliance upon approval of the Agreement by the Governor and Council.

4. The following paragraphs shall be added to the General Provisions of this agreement:

“22 1. Records and Accounts Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection
with the Services including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation, insurance,
telephone calls and clerical materials and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts,
invoices, bills and other similar documents.”

“22.2. Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion Date, at any
time during the Contractor's normal business hours and as often as the State shall demand, the
Contractor shall make available to the State all records pertaining to matters covered by this
agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State to audit, examine and reproduce such records and
to make audits of all invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that term is
hereinafter defined) and other information relating to all matters covered by this agreement. As used
in this paragraph, “Contractor” includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Contractor in Block 1.3 of these General
Provisions.”
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5. Following the approval by the Governor and Executive Council, this contract shall commence on or
about July 1, 2013 and terminate on June 30, 2015, with an option for renewal by way of a 2-year
extension subject to availability of funding and priorities, satisfactory performance of the Scope of
Services by the Contractor, mutual agreement by the parties and approval of contract renewals by
the Governor and Executive Council.

6. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination
or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account
into the Account identified in block 1.6, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or
unavailable.”
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5. F’dllowing the approval by the Governor ahd Executive Council, this contract shall commence on or
/about July 1, 2009 and terminate on Jung¢ 30, 2011, with an option for renewal by way of a 2-year
(extensmn subject to availability of funding and priorities, satisfactory performance of the Scope of

erwces by the Contractor, mutual agrgement by the parties and approval of contract renewals by
Governor and Executive Council.

6. Notwithstanding any prowsmn Is Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, in imitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination
or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account
into the Account identified in block 1.6, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or
unavailable.”
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

() Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(9) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

25 Main Street, Lancaster, NH 03584
3 Atwood Avenue, West Lebanon, NH 0378
28 Lafayette Avenue, Littleton, NH 03561

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Child and Family Services From: 7/1/2013 To: 6/30/2015
(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees
(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

v, <7, Mo 4/

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Déte)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Inifials: ,“
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements 6/ 3
January 2009 pate '/ 3/13
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject

to a ciyil penalty of not less than $0,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
Yo7 M
6\ e Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees

(Contractor Representative Signature) el (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Child and Family Services
(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Injtials: /M
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying 17/
January 2009 Date: 5 .3/ A 3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

”ow

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by

DHHS.
a7z
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initjals:
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters f/ /
January 2009 Date:__, .3, 73
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

()

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

AT

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters % /
January 2009 Date: * / 3
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

&'( xm / A 5]//)\ Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees

(Contrac’tor Representatlve Slgnature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Child and Family Services %/ 5 / / j
(Contractor Name) (Date) / /

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: é ( [

Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters 3 /
January 2009 Date: 3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1 By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ﬂ N"m/ /(/ ( {//x Marily Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees

(Contractor Representatlve Slgnature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Child and Family Services L//‘3 // j
(Contractor Name) (Date) [/

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Iniials: WA’
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act 7/ 3 /3
, 7V

January 2009 Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

M7 M4
\/-T)\ / ( Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees

(Contractor R\e]presentative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Child and Family Services é/ﬁ
(Contractor Name) (Datef

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Injtials: //{ 7ZA
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke I/ 3
January 2009 Date:__*, s /3 3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.

“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations™ in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

M TP

September 2009

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Injtials:
Page 1 of 6 Date: l/
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“Protected Health Information™ shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
I11. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Jlt Is: m ﬂb‘

September 2009
Page 2 of 6 Date:
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

September 2009

o N7/
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Contractor Initigls: / ”m

September 2009
Page 4 of 6 Date: / 3{ L 3
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractoytial : ZL{ ﬂ/b\
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Division of Community-Based Care Services

Bureau of Dev Services, Special Medical Services Child and Family Services
The State Agency Name Name of the Contractor
Ky ol sl iy /[( D\A/m /« \(9\

Signature of Authorized Representative Slgnature of Authorized Represen tiv
Nancy L. Rollins Marilyn Mahoney

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Associate Commissioner Chair, Board of Trustees

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

7’(4'/;1 VAL V/aﬁi
Date v Date | 7

M 72~
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not-already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Fin ci%'\ccountaﬂy an .Tlsnsparency Act.
Zt( LV?\-\/ 2 \ LL/?\ Marilyn Mahoney, Chair, Board of Trustees
V Yo )

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Child and Family Services Y/ / />
77

(Contractor Name) (Date) 7‘/\
Contractor jhitjals: ﬁ_/_
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 095505905

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

____NO __YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: _ Amount: __
Name: ___ Amount: __
Name: __ Amount: __
Name: __ Amount:
Name: Amount:

Contractoriyltia : ZM ./—?Lk
Date: __ 4% 3/13
Page#_ g of Page# &
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@ HESSION & PARE, -

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

62 Stark Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03101
603-669-5477 FAX 603-669-0197

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of Child and Family Services
of New Hampshire (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain.reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also .includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.




The Board of Trustees
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 20, 2013, on our consideration of Child and Family Services of New Hampshire’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Child and Family Services of New Hampshire’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

\
< (4
March 20, 2013 \’(E’ stod | ‘ Aoy ?.c,
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS
2012 2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 255,465 $ 203,538
Cash restricted for payment of long-term debt 30,000 25,000
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $7,505 in 2012 and $8,205 in 2011 949,727 980,874
Prepaid expenses 82,377 62,226
Deferred expenses 24,843 42,372
Bequest receivable 50,000 -
Beneficial interest in funds held by others 1,736,855 1,646,126
Property, plant and equipment, net 7,316,090 7,602,229
Investments 14,955,171 14,095,239
| Total assets $ 25,400,528 $ 24,657,604
\
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Line of credit $ - $ 124,535
| Accounts payable 130,627 109,592
| Accrued vacation 260,070 267,080
Accrued wages and related expenses 261,289 259,032
Annuities payable 1,487 2,612
Mark to market interest rate swap liability 1,558,953 1,660,401
Long-term debt 5,432,682 5,552,679
Total liabilities 7,645,108 7,975,931
Net assets
Unrestricted 360,326 (16,618)
Designated by Board 12,114,920 11,391,434
Temporarily restricted 2,366,851 2,619,139
Permanently restricted 2,913,323 2,687,718
Total net assets 17,755,420 16,681,673
Total liabilities and net assets $ 25,400,528 $ 24,657,604

See notes to financial statements.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31,2012

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue
Public support
Government and other grants and fees $ 8,236,067 $ - 3 - $ 8,236,067
Contributions 267,930 - 159,275 427,205
Foundations and trusts 602,049 - - 602,049
United Way 304,996 - - 304,996
Special events (net of direct costs of $103,656) 198,954 - - 198,954
Net assets released from restriction for
operating activities 276,688 (252,288) (24,400) -
Total public support 9,886,684 (252,288) 134,875 9,769,271
Revenue
Program service fees 1,823,706 - : - 1,823,706
Endowment transfer to support operations 856,719 - - 856,719
In-kind donations 147,429 - - 147,429
Rents : 15,207 - - 15,207
Income from HEFA trust 8,410 - - 8,410
Total other revenue 2,851,471 - - 2,851,471
Total public support and revenue ; 12,738,155 (252,288) 134,875 12,620,742
Expenses
Program services
Family counseling 1,047,925 - - 1,047,925
Teen and youth . 1,900,608 - - 1,900,608
Child abuse treatment 1,984,898 - - 1,984,898
Child abuse prevention and family strengthening 3,270,527 - - 3,270,527
Early intervention 403,047 - - 403,047
Homecare 1,736,040 - - 1,736,040
Residential services 556,649 - - 556,649
Adoptions and pregnancy counseling 152,139 - - 152,139
Child advocacy 129,760 - - 129,760
Summer camp 274,385 - - 274,385
Total program services 11,455,978 - - 11,455,978
Supporting services
Public relations and financial development 452,551 - - 452,551
Management and general 798,942 - - 798,942
Total supporting services 1,251,493 - - 1,251,493
Total expenses 12,707,471 - - 12,707,471
Increase (decrease) in net assets before
non-operating gains and losses 30,684 (252,288) 134,875 (86,729)

See notes to financial statements.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (concluded)

Year Ended December 31,2012

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted * Total

Increase (decrease) in net assets before

non-operating gains and losses $ 30,684 $ (252,288) $§ 134,875 $  (86,729)
Non-operating gains and losses

Investment gain reduced by the portion of cumulative

net appreciation designated for current operations 968,298 - - 968,298

Unrealized gain on mark to market interest rate swap 101,448 - - 101,448

Change in beneficial interest in funds held by others - - 90,730 90,730
Increase (decrease) in net assets 1,100,430 (252,288) 225,605 1,073,747
Net assets, beginning of year 11,374,816 2,619,139 2,687,718 16,681,673
Net assets, end of year $ 12,475,246 $ 2,366,851 $2913,323 $ 17,755,420

See notes to financial statements.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31,2011

Public support and revenue
Public support
Government and other grants and fees
Contributions
Foundations and trusts
United Way
Special events (net of direct costs of $101,186)
Net assets released from restriction for
operating activities
Total public support

Revenue
Program service fees
Endowment transfer to support operations
In-kind donations
Rents
Income from HEFA trust
Total other revenue

Total public support and revenue

Expenses
Program services
Family counseling
Teen and youth
Child abuse treatment

Child abuse prevention and family strengthening

Early intervention
Homecare
Residential services
Adoptions and pregnancy counseling
Child advocacy
Summer camp
Total program services

Supporting services
Public relations and financial development
Management and general
Total supporting services

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
non-operating gains and losses

See notes to financial statements.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 7,986,444 $ - 3 - $ 7,986,444
401,525 - 211,401 612,926
589,090 - - 589,090
343,962 - - 343,962
159,211 - - 159,211
118,762 (118,762) - -
9,598,994 (118,762) 211,401 9,691,633
1,673,422 - - 1,673,422
663,354 - - 663,354
221,620 - - 221,620
3,626 - - 3,626
8,145 - - 8,145
2,570,167 - - 2,570,167
12,169,161 (118,762) 211,401 12,261,800
1,117,703 - - 1,117,703
2,278,597 - - 2,278,597
1,644,015 - - 1,644,015
2,768,202 - - 2,768,202
408,898 - - 408,898
1,539,865 - - 1,539,865
592,487 - - 592,487
216,263 - - 216,263
211,588 - - 211,588
227,957 - - 227,957
11,005,575 - - 11,005,575
427,405 - - 427,405
785,600 - - 785,600
1,213,005 - - 1,213,005
12,218,580 - - 12,218,580
(49,419) (118,762) 211,401 43,220
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
non-operating gains and losses

Non-operating gains and losses
Investment loss reduced by the portion of cumulative
net appreciation designated for current operations
Unrealized (loss) on mark to market interest rate swap
Change in beneficial interest in funds held by others
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ (49,419) $ (118,762) § 211,401 $ 43,220
(951,952) - - (951,952)
(748,755) - - (748,755)
- - (130,908) (130,908)

(1,750,126) (118,762) 80,493

13,124,942 2,737,901 2,607,225

(1,788,395)

18,470,068

$11,374,816 $ 2,619,139 § 2,687,718

$16,681,673
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 1,073,747 $ (1,788,395)
Adjustments to reconcile change to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities .
Depreciation 369,616 373,667

Reinvested income (310,652) (392,867)
Realized (gain) on sale of investments (102,398) (356,631)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (1,463,682) 976,443
Unrealized (gain) loss on mark to market interest rate swap (101,448) 748,755
Amortization of NHHFA notes payable 18,426 17,382
(Increase) in restricted cash (5,000) -
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 31,147 (199,831)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses (20,151) (41,023)
(Increase) decrease in deferred expenses 17,529 (591)
(Increase) in bequest receivable (50,000) -
(Increase) decrease in beneficial interests in trusts (90,729) 65,434
(Decrease) in deferred contract revenue - (74,919)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 21,035 (22,578)
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation and expenses (4,753) 23,578
Net cash (used in) operating activities (617,313) (671,576)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash paid for land, buildings and equipment (83,477) (75,122)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution restricted to endowment ) (159,275) (210,501)
Proceeds from appropriation of endowment 1,151,675 749,219
Proceeds from release of restricted endowment 24,400 -
Net cash advance (payment) on line of credit (124,535) 124,535
Cash payments on long-term debt (138,423) (88,962)
Cash paid on annuity (1,125) (1,125)
Net cash provided by financing activities 752,717 573,166
Increase (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 51,927 (173,532)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 203,538 377,070
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 255,465 $ 203,538

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest paid in cash $ 332,900 $ 337,341
Amortization of 2007 NHHFA note payable $ 9,786 $ 9,232
Amortization of 2005 NHHFA note payable 3 8,640 $ 8,150

See notes to financial statements.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended December 31,2011

Child
Abuse Adoptions
Teen Child Prevention and Management
Family and Abuse and Family Early Residential ~ Pregnancy Child Summer Financial and
Counseling Youth Treatment Strengthening Intervention Homecare Services  Counseling ~ Advocacy Camp Development General Total

Salaries S 658368 $1212.882 S 018542 § 1453,036 S 235855 S$1.131,447 S 341,041 S 122574 S 119515 S 73392 § 225280 S 544,150 S 7,036,082
Employee benefits 71,353 201,785 97,008 180,527 45324 54,955 51572 26,090 16,462 4,077 29,095 51,451 829,699
Assistance to individuals 36,252 198,916 77,431 198213 (5) 11,333 34,632 10,680 3) 36,982 72,465 - 676,896
Payroll related costs 62,571 112,312 84,241 142,947 20,673 111,478 31378 10,001 10,248 6,416 18,495 38514 649,274
Travel and transportation 37,610 59117 60,798 301,668 21,259 38,296 10,903 3,699 4,773 6,372 2914 591 548,000
Professional fees 97,102 59,390 76,426 40,191 31,700 19,304 21,431 9,121 26,899 15,237 13,172 36,872 446,845
Occupancy 28,251 80,945 52,194 95.526 9,646 27,681 22,510 5,020 3327 49,799 7,849 25,537 408,285
Interest 35,501 74,595 95914 51,737 13,548 50,508 18,107 7,072 7,070 7,062 - 2,193 363,307
Communications 16,346 45,197 28,859 59,657 7,557 16,838 8,008 6,058 3511 3,867 17,668 2,521 216,087
Rental and equipment maintenance 8,031 17,378 11,256 11,149 3,971 3,054 6,214 2,993 1,137 1553 - 30,605 97,341
Supplies 6,222 26,186 14,747 14,253 2,018 7,100 8,020 1,076 622 2,509 3,169 6,971 92,893
Printing and publications 10,786 2,288 9,653 4,365 1,266 9917 2991 (10) 852 4,542 31,523 1,223 79,396
Conferences and meetings 6,663 13,428 10,227 5,248 673 691 1,634 2432 1,782 3,307 2,266 12,221 60,572
Insurance 4,565 11,771 6,952 14,575 1,286 4,831 4,434 918 640 376 1,274 4,609 56,231
Miscellaneous 1,448 4,631 6518 10,690 769 5,105 1,624 1119 6,684 680 831 2,291 42,390
Membership dues 658 3,474 1,666 3,033 217 931 1,778 160 1,161 277 1,392 5,248 19,995
Total expenses before

depreciation and in-kind donations 1,081,727 2,124,295 1,552,432 2,586,815 395,757 1,493,469 566,277 209,003 204,680 216,448 427,393 764,997 11,623,293
Depreciation 35,387 75,066 91,082 50,671 13,141 46,396 21,419 7,260 6,908 10,307 - 16,030 373,667
In-kind donations 589 79,236 501 130,716 - - 4,791 - - 1,202 12 4,573 221,620
Total functional expenses $1.117,703 §2278597 S 1644015 S 2768202 § 408898 1539865 S 592487 $ 216263 S 211,588 $ 227,957 § 427,405 S 785,600 $ 12,218,580

See notes to financial statements.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (the “Organization™) operates as a
voluntary, non-sectarian, non-profit organization located throughout the State' of
New Hampshire providing direct social services for families and children. The
Organization’s major source of revenue is derived from government and other grant
income.

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis
and in accordance with the Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205 and subsections.

This Topic establishes standards for general-purpose external financial statements
of not-for-profit organizations, including a statement of financial position, a
statement of activities and a statement of cash flows. This Topic further requires
classification of net assets and its revenues, expenses, gains and losses into three
categories, based on the existence or absence of externally imposed restrictions.
The categories, unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net
assets are defined as follows:

Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the
Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted — Net assets whose use is limited by law or donor-
imposed stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be
fulfilled by actions of the Organization. It also includes the accumulated
appreciation related to permanently restricted endowment gifts, which is a
requirement of FASB ASC 958-205-45.

Permanently Restricted — Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and in certain
circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor-imposed
stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to produce
income for general or specific purposes. Permanent restricted net assets also
include the fair value of the Organization’s beneficial interest in funds held by
others.

Principles of consolidation

The financial statements include accounts of the Organization and Child and
Family Realty Corporation, a commonly controlled organization. All inter-
organization transactions have been eliminated.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Income taxes

The Organization applied for and has been granted recognition of exemption from
federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code provides for the exemption of organizations that are
organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary or
educational purposes, no part of the net earnings of which inures to the benefit of
any private shareholders or individuals. The Organization had no unrelated
business income at December 31, 2012 and 2011. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been recorded. The income tax filings for the tax years before
2008 are no longer subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For financial statement purposes, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Temporary cash investments held in the investment portfolio are
excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Cash restricted for payment of long-term debt

Per the terms of the Series 2007 Bond, which included a refinancing of Series 1999
debt, the Organization deposited $1,056,089 at December 31, 2008 to an escrow
fund in order to pay off the Series 1999 Bonds. This payment took place during
January 2009. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the balance of this escrow fund
was $30,000.

Bond refinance costs

The Series 2007 bond was refinanced in 2009. Loan costs of $39,250 associated
with the refinancing are being amortized over the initial five year term of the
agreement.
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts receivable and revenue

Accounts receivable is recognized when qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent
audit under the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 and review by
grantor agencies. The review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under
the terms of the grants or reductions of future grant awards. Based on prior
experience, the Organization’s management believes that costs ultimately
disallowed, if any, would not materially affect the financial position of the
Organization.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Organization provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the
estimated uncollectible amounts. The Organization’s estimate is based on historical
collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts receivable. It is
reasonably possible that the Organization’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful
accounts will change. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, accounts receivable are
presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,505 and $8,205,
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated assets,
at fair market value on the date received. Any such donations are reported as
unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset for a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those
donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor
restrictions over the useful life of the asset. The Organization reclassifies
temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Major
additions and improvements of $1,000 or more are capitalized, while ordinary
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The cost and
accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts,
and any gains or losses are reflected in the statement of activities.
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Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (concluded)

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 15-50 years

Furniture and equipment 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years

Vehicles 5 years
Investments

The Organization accounts for investments in accordance with FASB ASC 958-320
and subsections. This standard requires that investments with readily determinable
values and all investments in debt securities are stated at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Investments without readily determinable fair
values are stated at cost. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in
net assets in the accompanying statements of activities. Periodically, management
reviews investments for which the market value has fallen significantly below cost
and recognizes impairment losses where they believe these declines are other-than-
temporary.

Annuities

Certain gifts require that the Organization pay the donor a predetermined amount
during the donor’s lifetime. Such gifts are recorded as revenue when received and
the present value of the future amount payable is credited to a liability account.
Periodically, an adjustment is made to annuities payable to record the actuarial
income or expense due to the computation of the liability based upon the revised
life expectancies.

Contributions and grants

In accordance with the Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the ASC 958-605 and
subsections, contributions and grants received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted depending on the existence and/or
nature of any donor/grantor restrictions. Contributions and grants restricted for a
specific purpose are reported as temporarily restricted support and are then
reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon satisfaction of those restrictions. If the
restrictions on contributions and grants are satisfied in the same fiscal period in
which they are received, then management has elected to classify them as
unrestricted for reporting purposes.
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Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)
Donated materials and services

Donated materials and equipment are reflected in the accompanying statements at
their estimated fair values at date of receipt. A substantial number of volunteers
have donated significant amounts of time to Child and Family Services of New
Hampshire program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements since the volunteers’ time does
not meet the criteria for recognition.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Note 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This
hierarchy consists of three broad levels:

Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and have the highest priority.

Level 2 inputs consist of quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive -markets, or
observable inputs other than quoted market prices.

Level 3 inputs consist of inputs that are unobservable and significant to the
fair value measurement and have the lowest priority.

The Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on available inputs
to measure the fair value of its investments. An asset’s fair value measurement
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques must maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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Note 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2012 011
Grants receivable $ 697,348 $ 659,227
Fees for services 259,884 329,852
957,232 989,079
Less allowance for
uncollectible accounts (7,505) (8,205)
Total $ 949,727 $ 980,874

Note 5. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are established at the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). One of the funds was established
in 2005. Income from the funds is to provide assistance to children attending Camp
Spaulding and for capital improvements to the camp. The fund resolution provides
that distributions from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board
of Directors; however, the Organization has received distributions from the funds
of an amount equal to approximately 5% of the average market value of the fund
over the last five years. Excess earnings, if any, are reinvested.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$751,523 and $706,317, respectively. The Organization received $30,214 and
$32,695 from the funds in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Note S. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS (concluded)

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair
value of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization’s
percentage interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage
Trust Interest 2012 2011
Greenleaf 100% $ 382,039 $ 362,040
Spaulding 100% 329,237 312,453
Cogswell 50% 274,056 265,316
Total $ 985,332 $ 939,809

Income distributed by these trusts was $43,342 and $40,002 in 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Beneficial interest in funds held by others is reported at its fair value, which is
estimated as the present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis.
As discussed in Note 3, the valuation technique used by the Organization is a level
3 measure because there are no observable market transactions.

Changes in fair value of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are comprised of the following:

Beneficial
Interest in Funds

Held by Others

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 1,711,560
Contribution 65,474
Change in value of beneficial interest (130,908)
Balance at December 31, 2011 1,646,126
Change in value of beneficial interest 90,729

Balance at December 31, 2012

$ 1,736,855
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Note 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

2012 011
Land $ 1,144,949 $ 1,144,949
Buildings and improvements 8,540,136 8,504,704
Furniture and equipment 1,864,695 1,855,844
Vehicles 128,606 163,794
Leasehold improvements 66,783 66,783
Software 168,608 147,015
11,913,777 11,883,089

Less accumulated depreciation (4,597,687) (4,280,860)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 7,316,090 $ 7,602,229
Note 7. INVESTMENTS.
Investments consist of the following:
012 2011
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Domestic equities $ 5,378,589 $ 6,563,094 $ 5,410,122 $ 5,864,679
International equities 3,858,629 3,891,869 3,794,526 3,278,319
Fixed income securities 1,988,704 2,207,774 2,422,615 2,632,737
Inflation hedging 1,768,387 1,883,898 2,221,542 2,038,106
Cash and equivalents 408,536 408,536 281,398 281,398
Total $13.402,845 $14955171 $14.130203 $14,095.230

Under the terms of a line of credit agreement with a bank, the Organization has

agreed not to pledge these assets as security on any other debt.

During 2009, the Organization requested a full redemption of its investment in the
limited partnership. The limited partnership acknowledged receipt of the request,
but noted that redemptions from the fund were suspended as of the year ended
December 31, 2009. During 2010, the limited partnership had formally notified the
Organization that all outstanding redemption requests will be honored pro rata
based on the redeeming investors’ total investment in the Fund relative to the total
of all redeeming investors’ investment in the Fund. The amount redeemed for the
year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $233,349 and $689,085, respectively.
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Note 7. INVESTMENTS (continued)
Investment return is summarized as follows:

012 011

Interest and dividend income $ 310,652 $ 392,867
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 1,566,080 _ (619.812)

Total investment gain (loss) $1.876,732 $(226,945)

Expenses relating to investment revenues, including management fees amounted to
$88,028 and $100,173 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and have been netted against investment revenues in the
accompanying statements of activities.

The Organization’s policy is to avail itself of a Board approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees for
2012 was 6% of the average fair market value of all investments over the previous
twelve quarters. The income recognized during the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 was $856,719 and 663,354, respectively. The cash transferred to
operations from investments during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
was $1,125,000 and $680,000, respectively.

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Organization is required to
report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the
ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization’s valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments
measured at quoted prices in active markets for identical investments as of
December 31, 2012. Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs such as
quoted market prices for similar assets. Level 3 is for investments measured using
inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is little, if
any, market activity for the investment.
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Note 7. INVESTMENTS (concluded)
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the valuation

techniques used to determine the fair value of the Foundation’s marketable
securities as follows:

Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31,2012
Value on a recurring basis
Marketable securities

Domestic equities $ 6,563,094 $ 6,563,094 § - 5 -

International equities 3,891,869 3,891,869 - -

Fixed income securities 2,207,774 - 2,207,774 -

Inflation hedging 1,883,898 1,883,898 - -
Total marketable securities $ 14,546,635 12.338.861 2.20 y -
December 31, 2011

Value on a recurring basis
Marketable securities

Domestic equities $ 5,864,679 $ 5,864,679 $ - $ -
International equities 3,278,319 3,278,319 - -
Fixed income securities 2,632,737 - 2,632,737 -
Inflation hedging 2,038,106 1,806,025 - 232,081
TotalAmarketable securities 8 41 $10.949.023 $2.632,737 § 232,081
Note 8. LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement
with Citizens Bank. The line of credit expires on June 30, 2013, unless extended.
The line carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate
(3.25% at December 31, 2012), adjusted at each change in the index. At
December 31, 2012, there was no balance due on the line of credit. '
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Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT
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Obligation. payable, original amount $5,540,000,
in monthly sinking fund installments, through
January 1, 2038, plus fixed interest at 3.915% per
annum paid to a counterparty to a swap agreement,
plus variable rate interest paid to bondholders,
minus variable rate interest received from the
counterparty to a swap agreement. The debt is
secured by the Organization’s investments and
gross receipts. In July 2009, the Organization
converted this obligation to a bank purchase mode.
Reference is made to Note 11. $ 5,075,000 $ 5,185,000

Capital lease payable in monthly installments of
$4,036 including interest at 7.35%, through
January 2012. The lease was for a phone system. - 2,993

Capital lease payable in monthly installments of
$1,573 including interest at 2.92%, through
October 2014. The lease is for a phone system. 32,169 49,828

Capital lease payable in monthly installments of
$777 through October 2012. The lease is for
equipment. - 7,771

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and
Finance Authority dated June 7, 2005. The face
amount of the note is $550,000, does not require
the payment of interest and is due in 30 years.
Accordingly, the note has been recorded at its
present value with interest imputed at 6.0%. The
note is secured by real estate located in Dover,
New Hampshire. 152,628 143,988
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Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and
Finance Authority dated May 22, 2007. The face
amount of the note is $700,000, does not require
the payment of interest and is due in 30 years.
Accordingly, the note has been recorded at its
present value with interest imputed at 6.0%. The
note is secured by real estate located in

Manchester, New Hampshire. 172,885 163,099

Total 5,432,682 5,552,679
Less current maturities (133,093) (138,336)

Long-term debt $;5,;9__9;§_§2 414

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending

December 31 Amount
2013 $ 133,093
2014 129,162
2015 120,000
2016 130,000
2017 135,000

Thereafter 4,785.427

Total 5,432,682
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Note 10. SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authorities (the
“Authority”) sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services
Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to
refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to the
Organization’s facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable
interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the
Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “Swap
Agreement”) with Citizens Bank of NH (the “Counterparty”) for the life of the
bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the Series 2007 Bonds.
The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay the
Counterparty, a fixed rate of 3.915%, in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one-
month LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset
Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty
credit worthiness and market variability can impact the variable rates received and
paid by the Organization, with the potential of increasing Organization interest
payments. As a result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2012 and 2011 is added
to interest expense in the statement of functional expense. The bonds mature in
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the statement
of financial position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the swap in
the statement of activities. For example, during the bond’s 30-year holding period,
the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest
rates increase above those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and
as an unrealized gain in the statement of activities), which will generally be
indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is below
market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The swap will
be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the statement of activities) if
interest rates decrease below those in effect on the date the swap was entered into
which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying
on the swap is above market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the
swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value changes in the swap transaction
are non-cash recognition requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the
end of the bond’s 30-year term. The Organization recorded the swap liability
position of approximately $1,558,953 and $1,660,401 at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. ‘
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Note 10. SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS (concluded)

During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating of the
Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which triggered a
mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a temporary conversion
of one hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase mode under the
terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it became evident
that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization
elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank
purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the
Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68
percent of the sum of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis
points. The bank purchase mode commenced on July 31, 2009 and expires on
July 31, 2014; however, the expiration date may be extended by the Counterparty
and the Organization has the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode.

The Series 2007 Bond documents require the Organization to comply with certain
financial covenants. As of December 31, 2012, the Organization was in
compliance with these covenants.

Note 11. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following specific program

services:
2012 2011
Deferred loan interest $ 924,488 $ 942912
Camp Spaulding 498,104 547,880
Camp Pavillion 298,676 306,925
Union Street 238,219 245,025
Teen and youth 114,939 226,649
Teen center 101,673 111,507
Child abuse prevention 96,432 106,979
Camp 52,483 42,353
Family counseling 29,455 8,620
Child abuse treatment 6,242 50,000
Homecare 6,140 30,289

Total $2,366,851 $2,619,139
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Note 12. PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, permanently restricted net assets of $2,913,323
and $2,687,718, respectively, are restricted to investments in perpetuity and for
which income earned is expendable to support operations subject to certain
restrictions. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, permanently restricted net assets
include $985,332 and $939,809, respectively, in investments held in perpetual
trusts.

Note 13. LEASES

The Organization leases office and counseling space located in various New
Hampshire communities.

Future minimum lease payments due under these leases are as follows:

Year
Ending Amount
2013 $ 96,378
2014 63,383
2015 63,383
2016 63,383
2017 14,383
Thereafter 3,437
Total $ 304,347

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, rent expense in connection with
these leases was $123,117 and $100,461, respectively. The Organization also
leases office and counseling space in New Hampshire on a tenant-at-will basis.
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Note 14. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS

The Not-for-Profit Entities Topic of the ASC intends to improve the quality of
consistency of financial reporting of endowments held by not-for-profit
organizations. This Topic provides guidance on classifying the net assets
associated with donor-restricted endowment funds held by organizations that are
subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA). New Hampshire has adopted UPMIFA. The Topic also
requires additional financial statement disclosures on endowments and related net
assets.

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the
principal of the fund and at the same time, provide a dependable source of support
for current operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support of
current operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund,
adjusted for new gifts to the fund.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates
are cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through
diversification of asset classes and selection of investment managers of diverse
investment styles. Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various
funds within the structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity needs, and
time horizon for intended use.

The spending policy is 5% of the average total endowment value over the trailing
12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This includes interest and dividends
paid out to the Organization.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be
computed on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs.
Total return is defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and unrealized
capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.
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Note 14. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS (continued)

Temporarily Permanently

December 31,2012  Unrestricted " Restricted Restricted Total
Investments,
beginning of year  $ 12,984,428 $ - $1,110,811 $ 14,095,239
Investment return
Investment income 310,652 - - 310,652
Realized gain 102,398 - - 102,398
Unrealized gain 1,463.682 - - 1,463,682
Total investment
return 1,876,732 - - 1,876,732
Contribution - - 159,275 159,275
Appropriation of
endowment assets:
Spending rate (856,719) - - (856,719)
Additional from
Board designated
funds (294.956) - - (294.956)

(1,151,675) - - (1,151,675)
Release of restriction - - (24.400) (24,400)
Investments, end of ;
year $ 13,709,485 3 - $ 1,245,686 14,955,171
Investment Net Asset Composition by Fund Type:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Undesignated $ 1,594,565 $ - $ - $ 1,663,784
Board designated 12,114,920 - - 12,114,920
Donor designated - - 1,245,686 1,176,467
Total 13,709,485 5 - 1,245,686 14,955,171
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- December 31, 2011

Investments,
beginning of year

Investment return
Investment income
Realized gain
Unrealized gain

Total investment
return

Contribution

Appropriation of
endowment assets:
Spending rate
Additional from
Board designated
funds

Transfer of fuhds

Investments, end of
year

Note 14. ENDOWMENT FUND ASSETS (concluded)

Investment Net Asset Composition by Fund Type:

Undesignated
Board designated
Donor designated

Total

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 13,965,237 $ = $ 895,665 $ 14,860,902
392,867 - - 392,867
356,631 - - 356,631
(976.443) = - (976.443)
(226,945) - - (226,945)
- - 211,401 211,401
(663,354) - - (663,354)
(86.,765) - - (86,765)
(750.119) 3 - (750.119)
(3.745) - 3,745 -
$ 12984428 b - $1,110811 $14,095.239
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 1,592,994 b - $ - $ 1,662,213
11,391,434 - - 11,391,434
- = 1,110,811 _ 1,041,592
$ 12,984,428 $ - $1,110,811 14,095,239
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Note 15. PENSION PLAN

The Organization sponsored a defined contribution plan that covered all employees
at day of hire and was at least twenty-one years of age. A pre-tax voluntary
contribution is permitted by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal
Revenue Code and other limitations specified in the Plan. There were no
contributions made to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December
31,2012 and 2011.

Note 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain 2011 amounts have been reclassified to conform to 2012 classification.
These reclassifications had no effect on the increase in net assets for 2011.

Note 17. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities
are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least
reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur
in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported
in the statements of financial position.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of
credit risk consist of checking and money market accounts in one financial
institution. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insures the balances up to
$250,000 at each bank. As of December 31, 2012, the Organization’s accounts
exceeded federally insured limits by $72,636.

The majority of the Organization’s grants are received from agencies of the state
of New Hampshire. As such, the Organization’s ability to generate resources via
grants is dependent upon the economic health of that area and of the state of New
Hampshire. An economic downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides
with an increase in demand for the Organization’s services.

Note 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire has evaluated subsequent events
through March 20, 2013, the date which the financial statements were available to
be issued, and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. No subsequent
events were identified that would require disclosure in the financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2012. '
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MISSION STATEMENT

Child and Family Services is dedicated to advancing
the well-being of children by providing an array of services
to strengthen family life and by promoting community commitment
to the needs of children.
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL FISCAL YEAR __2014-2015 .

Agency Name:

SFY

2014

2015

Child and Family Services

NAME

Michael Ostrowski
Maria Gagnon
Anthony Cheek
JoAnn Cobb

Michael Ostrowski
Maria Gagnon
Anthony Cheek
JoAnn Cobb

POSITION
TITLE
CEO
COO
CFO

Program Director

CEO
CcOO0
CFO
Program Director

ANNUAL
SALARY

$138,840
$94,994
$92,914
$62,899

$138,840
$94,994
$92,914
$62,899

% FROM CONTRACT

Contractor Initials: /M r}f/\

Date: 4;{ 29




AMY L. FINKLE

EDUCATION
UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Bachelor of Arts, 1993.

Major: Sociology.

* EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM SUPERVISOR, PARENTING PLUS PROGRAM and PARTNERS IN HEALTH
PROGRAM. Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Littleton. January 2009-present.
*Interviewed, trained and supervised four staff members.

*Performed annual performance reviews.

*Reviewed and approved time cards.

*Participated in monthly Leadership Team meetings for Coos Family Support Project.
*Coordinated quarterly trainings for Coos County home visitors.

FAMILY SUPPORT WORKER. PARENTING PLUS PROGRAM. Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire, Littleton. September 1999-present.

*Provided home-based case management services for families experiencing stress.

*Prepared and completed assessments, case plans, progress notes and other related agency forms
as required.

*Assisted families in accessing appropriate community resources.

*Qffered families emotional support and practical solutions in managing family life.

*Aided families to develop skills in the areas of positive parenting, discipline, communication,
conflict resolution, time management, and organization.

*Counseled families on healthy ways to manage anger and frustration.

*Supported families at school meetings and wraparound meetings.

*Represented the program and the agency in relevant community networking meetings and area
collaborative meetings.

*Completed monthly statistical reports and quarterly reports for the Littleton office.

PROGRAM SUPERVISOR. NORTH COUNTRY TRANISTIONAL LIVING PROGRAM.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Littleton. December 2002-December 2004.
*Trained and supervised two case managers on proper client assessment for motivation, skill level,
and ability to achieve independence within program limitations.

*Recruited, trained and supervised volunteer Resident Assistant to provide live-in support for the
program participants.

*QOrganized and conducted group activities for the participants as needed.

* Assured maintenance of client records according to CWLA standards and funding source
requirements.

*Prepared and completed agency forms and program reports for supervisor as requested.

PROGRAM SUPERVISOR. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem. July 1995-
September 1999.

* Administered program implementation.

*Supervised staff in daily childcare responsibilities and trained new staff.

*Scheduled and conducted initial intake interviews.

*Wrote reports for court hearings, transported residents to hearings, and acted as their advocate.
*Developed, reviewed, and updated contracts for each resident based on their treatment plans and

status in the program.




*Coordinated family services component by negotiating home visit contracts, arranging
transportation, and following up with the parents.

*Reviewed monthly progress report on each resident.

*Provided individual and crisis counseling to residents.

CHARGE COUNSELOR. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem. November
1994-July 1995.

*Coordinated daily schedule, delegated tasks, and planned activities.

*Supervised two Residential Counselors.

*Monitored overall program security and made emergency decisions in the absence of
administrators.

*Performed same duties and responsibilities as a Residential Counselor.

RESIDENTIAL COUNSELOR. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem,

September 1993-November 1994.

*Provided care, counseling, and supervision to 13 residents.
*Wrote daily logs and monthly reports as assigned.
*Participated in on-going staff meetings.




Adam DalPra

Experience

Family Service Coordinator-Partners in Health
October 2008-Present, Child and Family Services, Claremont, NH

Case manage families with children with chronic health conditions in Sullivan and part of Grafton
Counties.

Meet with families and prioritize needs related to the child’s health condition.

Help families gain access to services and resources relating to their child’s chronic health
condition.

Provide appropriate referrals to outside agencies.
Provide financial support and problem solve financial concerns.
Provide monthly budget and contact statistics to State of New Hampshire.

Develop long range plans for community projects involving parents of children with chronic health
conditions and members of the community.

Case Manager
January 2007-May 2008, Valley Court Diversion, White River Junction, VT

Created and implemented Diversion Program for the Lebanon NH area.
Trained volunteers to serve on panel to decide on appropriate punishment for juvenile offenders.
Created volunteer handbook and rules of etiquette that was to be followed by panel members.

Developed and implemented shoplifting program that was required to be completed by all
shoplifting offenders in program.

Created connections with local area businesses that allowed juveniles to do their community
service at these sites.

Education

Saint Anselm College, Manchester, NH 2000-2004
BA in Criminal Justice

University of Massachusetts-Lowell, Lowell, MA 2004-2005
MA in Criminal Justice with concentrations in Domestic Violence Prevention and Forensic
Criminology




Joyce B. Bernier

_Present Employment

Family Support Coordinator with Child and Family Services Partners in Health Program

Experience

2002-Present Child and Family Services Manchester, NH

Family Support Coordinator/Coos County Partners in Health Program
=  Support families of children with chronic health/providing home visits, various resources, and

funding
=  Solicit and maintain community connections, to include PIH Family Council

»  Attend various statewide workshops, document program, balance accounts

1999-2002 Lancaster National Bank Lancaster, NH

Branch Manager/Consumer Loan Officer
= Supervision of employees, hiring/terminating
= All aspects of office procedure to include consumer lending
»  Scheduling, ordering office supplies, debiting/crediting/balancing accounts

1997-1999 Ameri-Corps Program Berlin, NH

Work Based Learning Coordinator/Stratford, NH

= Coordinated work based learning projects for grades K-12 in a community setting

» Recruited & implemented community work sites for high school/scheduled guest speakers

»  Various statewide workshops & community service projects, logged & categorized program for
future growth

1987-1997 Lancaster National Bank Lancaster, NH

Teller

= Served as backup to Branch Supervisor
=  Various customer relations, receptionist & office procedures

Education

2007-Present Granite State College Concord, NH

Bachelor’s Degree
» Continued work toward a Bachelor’s Degree in Behavioral Science with a minor in Family
Studies-Member of Phi Theta Kappa & Dean’s List

References

References are available on request.




Resume
Faithanna M. Thibeault, LCMHC

Education:
Masters of Science in Mental Health Counseling, New England College, Henniker New
Hampshire - June 2010
Bachelors of Science in Criminal Justice and Forensic Psychology, Castleton
State College, Castleton Vermont 2003

Employment:
Clinician, Child and Family Services, Lebanon NH 2009 — Present

¢ Provide office and school based counseling services
e Provide intensive family based services for at risk families

¢ Provide therapeutic case management services for adjudicated juveniles at

risk of placement.
e Supervise employees in the Partners in Health program
Child Protection Service Worker, Division of Children Youth and Families, The
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services,
Claremont NH 2006 — 2009
e Investigating child abuse and neglect allegations
e Engaging families in correcting safety concerns
e  Working collaboratively with community agencies to provide services to
families
Youth Counselor, Youth Development Center, The State of New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services, Manchester NH 2002- 2006
e Managed a treatment caseload
e Provided individual treatment and facilitated family treatment
e Implemented collaborative problem solving and verbal de-escalation
techniques
e Maintained safety for high risk children and secure units
Floral Assistant, Phoebe’s Florist, Albany NY, 2003 — 2004
e Provided quality customer service
e Created floral arrangements
Administrative Assistant, H&R Block District 27905, Manchester NH 1999 — 2003
¢ Organized employee files to meet federal regulations
e Assisted in direct administrative duties
Box Office Manager, Castleton State College- Fine Arts Center, Castleton VT, 1999 — 2003
e Supervised ticket sales
e Aided in running cultural art events
Head Youth Counselor, Concord YMCA, Concord NH, 2000 — 2000
e Supervised and facilitated activities
e Monitored the daily functions of the classroom
Teacher Assistant, Two by Two Daycare, Bow NH, 1998 — 1999
e Facilitated in the direct care of the children
e Organized daily activities
Additional Information:
Member of Psi Chi National Honor Society in Psychology
Member of Phi Eta Sigma National Honor Society
Member of Alpha Chi National Honor Society




Child and Family Services
464 Chestnut Street
P. O. Box 448
Manchester, NH 03105-0448

Board of Trustees
2012 -2013

Board President: Suzanne Boulter, M. D.
Elaine Brody, Board Governance Committee
Treasurer: William Conrad
Gail Garceau, Chair, Board Governance Committee
Lou Kaucic, Chair, Board Development Committee
Board Secretary: Bradford Kuster, Esq., Advocacy Committee
Peggy Lambert, Board Development Committee
Kirk Leoni, Board Finance Committee
Marilyn Mahoney, Esq., Chair, Executive Committee

Willard Martin, Advocacy Committee

Michael Ostrowski, CEO, Assistant Secretary, Executive Committee

Samantha Pause, Board Governance Committee
Gregory Swope, Esq., Chair, Concord Regional Board

Vice Chair: Kerry Uhler, Executive Committee




State of Nefe Hampshive
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed September 25, 1914. 1 ﬁl_rther certify that it is in
vgood standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2" day of April A.D. 2013

By Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
4/4/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER
FIAI/Cross Insurance

[N £y (603) 669-3218

RONIACT Linda Dacey

(Al o). (603) 645-4331

1100 Elm Street | ADuREss: ldacey@crossagency . com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Manchester NH 03101 INsuRerA:Philadelphia Ins Co
INSURED insurer 8 OBE Insurance Corp 39217
Child & Family Services of New Hampshire INnsurer c - Travelers Ins. Co. -
Po Box 448 INSURER D :

INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03105 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:12-13 Pkg, BA, Prof & Umb REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'ETSRB TYPE OF INSURANCE ey w?S POLICY NUMBER (53/%%YM)EFF ﬁ/%%% LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BSE‘G%’EgTO(EZ%'ZE&m) $ 100,000
A ' CLAIMS-MADE Izl OCCUR PHPK879641 7/1/2012  [7/1/2013 [ yeo exp (Any one person) | § 15,000
- PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
— GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
YI POLICY ﬁ e [_] LOC $
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY [Eatcadeny oM s 1,000,000
& | X | any auTo BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
] Qlﬁgr 8§VNED }s\ﬁ?ggumo [PHPK879641 7/1/2012 (7/1/2013 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| “* | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
Drive other car $ 1,000,000
| | UMBRELLALAB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000
A | X | EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000
oep | X | rerenmions 10,009 PHUB385665 7/1/2012  (1/1/2013 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION QWC4001064 xlgeome ] o
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YN
3% ggg}aréﬁggxp&mggfgecunve I_Tq_—l il s (3a.) NH . E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
(Mandatory in NH) pll officers included 4/4/2013  4/4/2014 | ¢\ pispasE - EA EMPLOYEH § 500,000
'cf> %%3."5%?8& léng OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
C |Fidelity & Forgery 104895803 4/1/2013  14/1/2015 | |jmit $200,000
A | Professional Liability PHPK879641 7/1/2012  [7/1/2013 | pggregate $2,000,000

respects to the CGL as per written contract.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
DHHS: State of NH, Division for Children, Youth & Families are listed as additional insureds with

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

(603)271-4729

DHHS: State of NH

Director Division for Children, Youth
& Families

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

John.H.Harrington@dhhs.sta

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Don Lefebvre/JSC

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSN25 1201005\ 01

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.
Tha ACNORN nama and lnnn ara ranictarad marke nf ACORN




NH Department of Health and Human Services

BUDGET

Child and Family Services— Berlin
Partners In Health: Family Support FY 2014 FY 2015
Services for Children and Adolescents with
Chronic Health Conditions

FAMILY SUPPORT (STAFF) SERVICES $22,637.00 $22,637.00
FLEX FUNDS (paid as spent) $20,000.00 $20,000.00
* TOTAL STATE CONTRACT AWARD $42,637.00 $42,637.00

** Program support obtained through direct billing to NH Medicaid for case management shall not exceed a
maximum of 122 encounters or a total billing of $40,443.00 per fiscal year.

M-

Contractor Injtials
Date %3 / /3




NH Department of Health and Human Services

BUDGET

Child and Family Services — Lebanon
Partners In Health: Family Support FY 2014 FY 2015
Services for Children and Adolescents with
Chronic Health Conditions

FAMILY SUPPORT (STAFF) SERVICES $23,527.00 $23,527.00
FLEX FUNDS (paid as spent) $20,000.00 $20,000.00
* TOTAL STATE CONTRACT AWARD $43,527.00 $43,527.00

** Program support obtained through direct billing to NH Medicaid for case management shall not exceed a
maximum of 122 encounters or a total billing of $40,443.00 per fiscal year.

—l
CDatte ;//[2, /1/ 2
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

BUDGET

Child and Family Services - Littleton
Partners In Health: Family Support FY 2014 FY 2015
Services for Children and Adolescents with
Chronic Health Conditions

FAMILY SUPPORT (STAFF) SERVICES $19,233.00 $19,233.00
FLEX FUNDS (paid as spent) $20,000.00 $20,000.00
* TOTAL STATE CONTRACT AWARD $39,233.00 $39,233.00

** Program support obtained through direct billing to NH Medicaid for case management shall not exceed a
maximum of 122 encounters or a total billing of $40,443.00 per fiscal year.

T

Contractor Inftia
Date ‘3




FACT SHEET

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES
SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES SECTION

CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

1. Name of Applicant Agency (legal): Child and Family Services of NH

464 Chestnut Street

2. Address (mailing):
' Manchester, NH 03101

3. Telephone Number: (603) 518-4000

‘4. Name of Agency Board Chairperson/

President Marilyn Mahoney, Chair

5. Name.of Agency Director: Michaél R. Ostrowski, President/CEO

6. Is the Agency exempt from Federal-Income Tax 501 (c) (3)? Yes_Xx No_ .

7. Civil Rights Information

a. Does the agency have a non-discrimination notice posted in client
service areas?

Yes_X -No
b. Does the agency have a procedure for obtaining race/ethnic data?
Yes X No
c. Does the agency have %(procedure for obtaining primary language data?
Yes No
d. Is the agency handicapped accessible?
Yes X No
e. If not accessible, is alternate site available?

, Yes_ X No
f. Does the agency have a procedure for communicating with

persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP)?
Yes__ X No T
g. Does the agency have a procedure for communicating with -

handicapped persons?
Yes_ X No

— M
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